UEE
Legislative Council

LC Paper No. CB(2)13/17-18

Ref : CB2/H/5/16

House Committee of the Legislative Council

Minutes of the 31st meeting
held in Conference Room 1 of the Legislative Council Complex
at 2:30 pm on Friday, 6 October 2017

Members present :

Hon Starry LEE Wai-king, SBS, JP (Chairman)
Hon Dennis KWOK Wing-hang (Deputy Chairman)
Hon James TO Kun-sun

Hon Tommy CHEUNG Yu-yan, GBS, JP

Prof Hon Joseph LEE Kok-long, SBS, JP

Hon Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung, GBS, JP

Hon WONG Ting-kwong, GBS, JP

Hon CHAN Hak-kan, BBS, JP

Hon CHAN Kin-por, GBS, JP

Dr Hon Priscilla LEUNG Mei-fun, SBS, JP
Hon WONG Kwok-kin, SBS, JP

Hon Mrs Regina IP LAU Suk-yee, GBS, JP
Hon Paul TSE Wai-chun, JP

Hon Claudia MO

Hon Steven HO Chun-yin, BBS

Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, SBS, JP

Hon WU Chi-wai, MH

Hon YIU Si-wing, BBS

Hon MA Fung-kwok, SBS, JP

Hon Charles Peter MOK, JP

Hon CHAN Chi-chuen

Hon CHAN Han-pan, JP

Hon LEUNG Che-cheung, SBS, MH, JP

Hon Kenneth LEUNG

Hon Alice MAK Mei-kuen, BBS, JP

Dr Hon KWOK Ka-Ki

Hon KWOK Wai-keung, JP

Hon Christopher CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP



-2-

Dr Hon Fernando CHEUNG Chiu-hung
Dr Hon Helena WONG Pik-wan

Hon IP Kin-yuen

Dr Hon Elizabeth QUAT, BBS, JP

Hon Martin LIAO Cheung-kong, SBS, JP
Hon POON Siu-ping, BBS, MH

Dr Hon CHIANG Lai-wan, JP

Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP
Hon CHUNG Kwok-pan

Hon Alvin YEUNG

Hon Andrew WAN Siu-kin

Hon CHU Hoi-dick

Hon Jimmy NG Wing-ka, JP

Dr Hon Junius HO Kwan-yiu, JP

Hon HO Kai-ming

Hon LAM Cheuk-ting

Hon Holden CHOW Ho-ding

Hon SHIU Ka-fai

Hon SHIU Ka-chun

Hon Wilson OR Chong-shing, MH
Hon YUNG Hoi-yan

Dr Hon Pierre CHAN

Hon CHAN Chun-ying

Hon Tanya CHAN

Hon CHEUNG Kwok-kwan, JP

Hon HUI Chi-fung

Hon LUK Chung-hung

Hon LAU Kwok-fan, MH

Hon Kenneth LAU Ip-keung, BBS, MH, JP
Dr Hon CHENG Chung-tai

Hon KWONG Chun-yu

Hon Jeremy TAM Man-ho

Members absent :

Hon LEUNG Yiu-chung
Hon Abraham SHEK Lai-him, GBS, JP
Hon Michael TIEN Puk-sun, BBS, JP



Action

Clerk in attendance :

Miss Flora TAI

Staff in attendance :

Mr Kenneth CHEN, SBS

Ms Connie FUNG
Miss Odelia LEUNG

Clerk to the House Committee

Secretary General
Legal Adviser
Deputy Secretary General

Ms Anita SIT Assistant Secretary General 1
Ms Dora WAI Assistant Secretary General 3
Mr Matthew LOO Assistant Secretary General 4
Mr Timothy TSO Senior Assistant Legal Adviser 1
Mr YICK Wing-kin Senior Assistant Legal Adviser 2
Mr Kelvin LEE Senior Assistant Legal Adviser 3
Ms Amy YU Principal Council Secretary 1

Ms Hallie CHAN
Ms Alice LEUNG
Miss Rachel DAI

Head (Public Information)
Chief Council Secretary (2)6
Assistant Legal Adviser 2

Ms Vanessa CHENG Assistant Legal Adviser 5
Ms Wendy KAN Assistant Legal Adviser 6
Ms Clara TAM Assistant Legal Adviser 9

Miss Evelyn LEE
Mr Richard WONG
Ms Jasmine TAM
Miss Connie AU
Ms Anna CHEUNG
Mr Arthur KAN

Assistant Legal Adviser 10
Senior Council Secretary (2)6
Senior Council Secretary (2)8
Council Secretary (2)6

Senior Legislative Assistant (2)3
Legislative Assistant (2)7

. Matters arising

Report by the Chairman on her meeting with the Chief Secretary for
Administration

The Chairman said that there was nothing special to report.

Il.  Business arising from previous Council meetings

Legal Service Division report on bill referred to the

House Committee in accordance with Rule 54(4)




Action

Road Tunnels (Government) (Amendment) Bill 2017
(LC Paper No. LS98/16-17)

2. At the invitation of the Chairman, Legal Adviser ("LA™) briefed
Members on the report prepared by the Legal Service Division ("LSD")
on the Bill. Members noted that LSD was making enquiries with the
Administration on certain legal aspects of the Bill and would report
further if necessary.

3. Mr LAM Cheuk-ting considered it necessary to form a Bills
Committee to study the Bill in detail. Members agreed. Mr LAM
Cheuk-ting agreed to join the proposed Bills Committee.

Legal Service Division report on subsidiary legislation gazetted
between 7 July and 22 September 2017
(LC Paper No. LS99/16-17)

4, At the invitation of the Chairman, LA briefed Members on the
LSD report which covered the following two groups of subsidiary
legislation gazetted between 7 July and 22 September 2017:

(@ two items gazetted on 7 July 2017 (i.e. L.N. 140 and L.N.
141) and tabled in the Legislative Council ("LegCo™) on
12 July 2017; and

(b) six items gazetted between 14 July and 22 September 2017
(i.e. L.N. 145 to L.N. 150), of which one item would be
tabled in LegCo on 11 October 2017 and the remaining five
items were not required to be tabled in LegCo.

5. Mr Kenneth LAU considered it necessary to form a subcommittee
to study the Country Parks (Designation) (Consolidation) (Amendment)
Order 2017 (L.N. 141) in detail. Members agreed. The following
Members agreed to join the subcommittee: Mr CHAN Hak-kan, Mr
Steven HO, Mr LEUNG Che-cheung, Mr CHU Hoi-dick and Mr Kenneth
LAU. As the deadline for amending the Order would be the Council
meeting of 18 October 2017 unless extended by a resolution of the
Council, Members also agreed that the Chairman should, in her capacity
as the Chairman of the House Committee ("HC"), move a motion at the
Council meeting of 18 October 2017 to extend the period for amending
the Order to the Council meeting of 8 November 2017.




Action

V.

6. Regarding the United Nations Sanctions (Democratic Republic of
the Congo) Regulation 2017 (L.N. 149) and the United Nations Sanctions
(South Sudan) Regulation 2017 (L.N. 150) made under the United
Nations Sanctions Ordinance (Cap. 537) which were not required to be
tabled in LegCo and were not subject to amendment by LegCo, Members
agreed that these two items of subsidiary legislation be referred to the
Subcommittee to Examine the Implementation in Hong Kong of
Resolutions of the United Nations Security Council in relation to
Sanctions ("the UN Subcommittee™) as they came within the
Subcommittee's terms of reference.

7. Members did not raise any question on the remaining five items of
subsidiary legislation (i.e. L.N. 140 and L.N. 145 to L.N. 148) covered in
the LSD report.

8. The Chairman reminded Members that the deadline for amending
the two items of subsidiary legislation which had been tabled in Council
on 12 July 2017 would be the Council meeting of 18 October 2017 (or
that of 8 November 2017 if extended by a resolution of the Council); and
the deadline for amending the item of subsidiary legislation which would
be tabled in Council on 11 October 2017 would be the Council meeting of
8 November 2017.

Legal Service Division report on subsidiary legislation gazetted on
29 September 2017
(LC Paper No. LS100/16-17)

9. At the invitation of the Chairman, LA briefed Members on the
LSD report on the item of subsidiary legislation gazetted on 29
September 2017, i.e. the United Nations Sanctions (Libya) Regulation
2011 (Amendment) Regulation 2017 (L.N. 151) made under Cap. 537
which was not required to be tabled in LegCo and was not subject to
amendment by LegCo.

10. Members agreed that the above Regulation be referred to the UN
Subcommittee as it came within the Subcommittee's terms of reference.



Action

Business for the Council meeting of 11 October 2017

Report No. 1/17-18 of the House Committee on Consideration of
Subsidiary Legislation and Other Instruments

11. The Chairman said that the above draft Report, which covered
subsidiary legislation the period for amendment of which would expire at
the Council meeting of 11 October 2017, had been issued to Members.
No Member had indicated intention to speak on the subsidiary legislation.

(@) The Chief Executive's Policy Address

12.  The Chairman said that the Chief Executive ("CE") would deliver
her Policy Address at the meeting.

(b) Members' motions

Proposed resolution to be moved by Hon MA Fung-kwok under
section 34(4) of the Interpretation and General Clauses
Ordinance (Cap. 1) in relation to the following items of
subsidiary legislation:

(i) Electoral Affairs Commission (Electoral Procedure)
(Legislative Council) (Amendment) Regulation 2017;

(i) Electoral Affairs Commission (Electoral Procedure)
(District Councils) (Amendment) Regulation 2017;

(ili) Electoral Affairs Commission (Electoral Procedure)
(Election Committee) (Amendment) Regulation 2017,

(iv) Electoral Procedure (Chief Executive Election)
(Amendment) Regulation 2017; and

(v) Electoral Procedure (Rural Representative Election)
(Amendment) Regulation 2017

(LC Paper No. CB(3)6/17-18)

13. The Chairman said that the purpose of the above proposed
resolution was to extend the period for amending the five items of
subsidiary legislation concerned to the Council meeting of 8 November
2017.




Action

VI.

VII.

14. The Chairman further said that the preliminary Agenda for the
Council meeting of 11 October 2017 had been issued to Members earlier.
Members had also been informed that in line with past practice, the
President had directed that the meeting would be adjourned after CE's
presentation of the Policy Address. Members noted that the following
items of unfinished business on the Agenda would stand over until the
Council meeting of 18 October 2017:

(@) the Committee Stage and Third Reading of the Stamp Duty
(Amendment) Bill 2017;

(b) two Government motions to be moved respectively under the
Energy Efficiency (Labelling of Products) Ordinance
(Cap. 598) and the Criminal Procedure Ordinance (Cap. 221);
and

(c) the above proposed resolution to be moved by Mr MA
Fung-kwok.

The Chief Executive's Question and Answer Session on 12 October
2017

15. The Chairman informed Members that CE's Question and Answer
Session on the Policy Address would be held on 12 October 2017, from
10:30 am to 12:00 noon.

Business for the Council meeting of 18 October 2017

(@) Questions
(LC Paper No. CB(3)8/17-18)

16. The Chairman said that 22 questions (six oral and 16 written) had
been scheduled for the meeting.

(b) Bills - First Reading and moving of Second Reading

(i)  Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 5) Bill 2017

(i)  Supplementary Appropriation (2016-2017) Bill



Action

VIII.

17. The Chairman said that HC would consider the above two Bills at
its meeting on 20 October 2017.

(c) Government motion

18. The Chairman said that no notice had been received yet.

(d) Members' motions

19. The Chairman said that two Members' motions without legislative
effect which had stood over from previous Council meetings and were to
be moved respectively by Mr Jimmy NG and Mr HO Kai-ming would be
dealt with at the meeting.

Report of House Committee on Consideration of Subsidiary Legislation

20. The Chairman invited Members to note the list tabled at this
meeting (LC Paper No. CB(3)9/17-18), which contained 11 items of
subsidiary legislation the period for amendment of which would expire at
the Council meeting of 18 October 2017. She reminded Members to
indicate their intention by 5:00 pm on Tuesday, 10 October 2017, should
they wish to speak on any of these items of subsidiary legislation.

Reports of Bills Committees and subcommittees

(@) Report of the Subcommittee on Hong Kong Civil Aviation
(Investigation of Accidents) (Amendment) Regulation 2017 and
Air Navigation (Hong Kong) Order 1995 (Amendment) Order
2017
(LC Paper No. CB(4)1621/16-17)

21. Mr_Jeremy TAM, Chairman of the Subcommittee, briefed
Members on the deliberations of the Subcommittee as detailed in its
report. Mr TAM advised that the Subcommittee supported the two items
of subsidiary legislation and would not propose any amendments to them.

22.  The Chairman reminded Members that the period for amending the
two items of subsidiary legislation would expire at the Council meeting of
11 October 2017.




Action

IX.

(b) Report of the Subcommittee on Rules of the High Court
(Amendment) Rules 2017
(LC Paper No. CB(4)1631/16-17)

23.  Mr James TO, Chairman of the Subcommittee, briefed Members on
the deliberations of the Subcommittee as detailed in its report. Mr TO
said that the Subcommittee had no objection to the Amendment Rules and
both the Subcommittee and the Administration would not propose any
amendments to them.

24. The Chairman reminded Members that as the period for amending
the Amendment Rules would expire at the Council meeting of 18 October
2017, the deadline for giving notice of amendments, if any, would be
Wednesday, 11 October 2017.

Position on Bills Committees and subcommittees
(LC Paper No. CB(2)2137/16-17)

25. The Chairman said that as at 4 October 2017, there were 14 Bills
Committees (four of which would need to work beyond three months
since their commencement), 12 subcommittees under HC and
five subcommittees on policy issues under Panels in action. Nine
subcommittees on policy issues were on the waiting list.

Filling of a vacancy in the membership of the Investigation
Committee established under Rule 49B(2A) of the Rules of Procedure
in respect of the motion to censure Hon Holden CHOW Ho-ding

(LC Paper No. CB(1)1440/16-17)

26. Members agreed that the procedure set out in paragraph 5 of the
paper be adopted for the election of a Member for appointment to fill a
vacancy in the membership of the Investigation Committee established
under Rule 49B(2A) of the Rules of Procedure ("RoP") in respect of the
motion to censure Hon Holden CHOW Ho-ding. Members also agreed
that the election be held at the HC meeting on 20 October 2017.



Action

XI.

-10 -

Proposal from Hon Jeremy TAM for setting up a subcommittee on
issues relating to policy on industrial buildings under the House
Committee

(LC Paper No. CB(2)2124/16-17(01))

27. The Chairman advised that under rule 20(j)(ii) of the House Rules
("HR™), HC might appoint a subcommittee to assist the committee's
consideration of an issue of public concern which fell outside the purview
of Panels. She further said that the government measures on revitalizing
industrial buildings referred to by Mr Jeremy TAM in his proposal to set
up a subcommittee on issues relating to policy on industrial buildings
("the proposed subcommittee™) had been followed up by the Panel on
Development (“the DEV Panel”) since their implementation in 2010.
While the relevant measures might involve various government bureaux
and departments, the Development Bureau was the policy bureau
responsible for co-ordinating the implementation of measures on
revitalizing industrial buildings. The Chairman asked whether Mr TAM
would consider putting forward to the DEV Panel for consideration of
setting up the proposed subcommittee under the Panel.

28. At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr Jeremy TAM said that as
issues relating to policy on industrial buildings straddled several policy
areas, as detailed in his proposal, he therefore proposed to set up the
proposed subcommittee under HC. While he had no strong view as to
whether the proposed subcommittee should be set up under HC or the
DEV Panel, he hoped that Members would support his proposal at this
meeting so that the proposed subcommittee would be put on the waiting
list of subcommittees on policy issues (“the waiting list") immediately
and could commence work at the earliest possible time.

29. Mr Tommy CHEUNG said that Members of the Liberal Party
supported the setting up of the proposed subcommittee. However, he
considered it inappropriate to set up such a subcommittee under HC to
follow up issues which fell within the purview of a Panel. He suggested
that Mr Jeremy TAM's proposal should be submitted to the DEV Panel for
consideration.

30. Mrs Regina IP expressed support for setting up a subcommittee to
study issues relating to the use on industrial buildings. She, however,
considered that such a subcommittee should be set up under the DEV
Panel as the Development Bureau was responsible for policies governing
planning, development, land use and building safety. She added that if




Action

-11 -

necessary, relevant bureaux/departments could be invited to a meeting of
the DEV Panel for the discussion of issues concerning fire safety and
housing.

31. Mr WU Chi-wai, Mr Andrew WAN and Mr KWONG Chun-yu
expressed support for Mr Jeremy TAM's proposal. They considered that
issues relating to industrial buildings not only involved the work of the
Development Bureau, but also straddled various policy areas including
home affairs, housing, security and economic development. They
considered that if the proposed subcommittee was set up under HC,
relevant issues could be studied in a more holistic manner.

32.  Ir Dr LO Wai-kwok said that Members belonging to Business and
Professionals Alliance for Hong Kong were concerned about the policy
on industrial buildings. However, while he supported the setting up of
the proposed subcommittee, he considered it more appropriate for such a
subcommittee be set up under the DEV Panel as the Panel had discussed
and followed up the related issues. Expressing similar view with Ir Dr
LO, Mr LAU Kwok-fan suggested that Mr Jeremy TAM's proposal
should be submitted to the DEV Panel as the Development Bureau was
the leading bureau for co-ordinating the measures on revitalization of
industrial buildings.

33. Dr KWOK Ka-ki expressed support for setting up the proposed
subcommittee under HC so that all interested Members could join it.
Furthermore, if the proposal was supported by Members, the proposed
subcommittee could then be put on the waiting list immediately and could
be activated as early as possible.

34. Ms Claudia MO and Dr Fernando CHEUNG expressed support for
Mr Jeremy TAM's proposal. Ms MO considered that there was urgency
for setting up a subcommittee to study issues relating to industrial
buildings, which straddled various policy areas. Dr CHEUNG said that
apart from the Housing Department and the Home Affairs Department,
the Social Welfare Department would also be involved when discussing
issues relating to the removal of tenants of subdivided flats in industrial
buildings.

35.  Mr Jimmy NG said that the proposed subcommittee was also
related to re-industrialization in Hong Kong and such policy would
involve the Innovation and Technology Bureau and the Commerce and
Economic Development Bureau. He considered that there was urgency




Action

-12 -

for setting up the proposed subcommittee, though he had no strong view
as to whether the proposed subcommittee should be set up under HC or
Panels.

36. Mr MA Fung-kwok said that the issues to be studied by the
proposed subcommittee indeed straddled several policy areas, including
security, home affairs, housing and development. While he would not
object to the proposal for setting up the proposed subcommittee, he
suggested that as there were a number of subcommittees on the waiting
list, a joint meeting of relevant Panels could be held so as to follow up the
issues in a timely manner. Mr Jeffrey LAM also considered that in order
to follow up the issues as early as possible, the relevant Panel could invite
other non-Panel Members to attend its meeting for the discussion of
relevant issues, or a joint meeting of Panels could be held.

37. Mr_CHU Hoi-dick considered it desirable that the proposed
subcommittee be set up under HC, so that different stakeholders could be
invited to express views directly to the relevant bureaux and departments
involved in the policy on industrial buildings. He added that while the
proposed subcommittee was put on the waiting list awaiting activation,
the relevant issues could be followed up by the relevant Panel(s).

38. Mr Charles MOK said that the use of industrial buildings was also
related to innovation and technology, as there were data centres in
industrial buildings. He considered that the relevant issues could not be
adequately addressed under the DEV Panel, and wondered whether these
issues could be followed up effectively and expeditiously by way of
holding joint meetings of the relevant Panels if Mr Jeremy TAM's
proposal was not supported by HC at this meeting.

39. The Chairman advised that if Members supported Mr Jeremy
TAM's proposal, the proposed subcommittee would be the tenth
subcommittee on the waiting list awaiting activation, which included
subcommittees on policy issues formed under HC and Panels. She
further said that Members, if considered necessary, could propose holding
a joint meeting of Panels at a meeting of the relevant Panels after the
election of chairmen of Panels for the 2017-2018 session to be held on 12
October 2017. Furthermore, Members who were interested in the
relevant issues could still join the relevant Panel(s), as the deadline for
signification of membership of the 18 Panels had not passed.




Action

-13-

40. At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr Jeremy TAM said that if
Members considered that there was urgency for setting up a
subcommittee to study the policy on industrial buildings which straddled
various policy areas, he hoped that Members would support his proposal
to set up the proposed subcommittee under HC at this meeting so that the
proposed subcommittee could be put on the waiting list immediately.

41. The Chairman put to vote the proposal from Mr Jeremy TAM for
setting up a subcommittee on issues relating to policy on industrial
buildings under HC, with the terms of reference, work plan and time
frame as set out in the paper. Mr Tommy CHEUNG requested a
division.

The following Members voted in favour of the proposal:

Mr James TO, Prof Joseph LEE, Ms Claudia MO, Mr WU Chi-wai, Mr
Charles MOK, Mr CHAN Chi-chuen, Mr Kenneth LEUNG, Dr KWOK
Ka-ki, Mr Dennis KWOK, Dr Fernando CHEUNG, Dr Helena WONG,
Mr IP Kin-yuen, Mr Alvin YEUNG, Mr Andrew WAN, Mr CHU
Hoi-dick, Mr LAM Cheuk-ting, Mr SHIU Ka-chun, Ms Tanya CHAN,
Mr HUI Chi-fung, Dr CHENG Chung-tai, Mr KWONG Chun-yu and Mr
Jeremy TAM.

(22 Members)

The following Members voted against the proposal:

Mr Tommy CHEUNG, Mr Jeffrey LAM, Mr CHAN Kin-por, Dr Priscilla
LEUNG, Mr WONG Kwok-kin, Mr Frankie YICK, Mr YIU Si-wing, Ms
Alice MAK, Mr KWOK Wai-keung, Mr Christopher CHEUNG, Mr
Martin LIAO, Ir Dr LO Wai-kwok, Mr CHUNG Kwok-pan, Dr Junius
HO, Mr HO Kai-ming, Mr SHIU Ka-fai, Mr CHAN Chun-ying, Mr LUK
Chung-hung and Mr Kenneth LAU.

(19 Members)

The following Members abstained from voting :

Mr WONG Ting-kwong, Mr CHAN Hak-kan, Mrs Regina IP, Mr Paul
TSE, Mr Steven HO, Mr MA Fung-kwok, Mr CHAN Han-pan, Mr
LEUNG Che-cheung, Dr Elizabeth QUAT, Mr POON Siu-ping, Dr
CHIANG Lai-wan, Mr Jimmy NG, Mr Holden CHOW, Mr Wilson OR,
Ms YUNG Hoi-yan, Mr CHEUNG Kwok-kwan and Mr LAU Kwok-fan.

(17 Members)



Action

XIl.

-14 -

42. The Chairman declared that 22 Members voted for and
19 Members voted against the proposal, and 17 Members abstained from
voting. The Chairman declared that the proposal was supported.

43. The following Members agreed to join the subcommittee: Mrs
Regina IP, Mr Charles MOK, Mr CHAN Chi-chuen, Ms Alice MAK, Mr
Andrew WAN, Mr Jimmy NG, Mr HO Kai-ming, Mr SHIU Ka-chun, Ms
Tanya CHAN, Mr LAU Kwok-fan, Mr KWONG Chun-yu and Mr Jeremy
TAM. Members noted that the subcommittee would be put on the
waiting list awaiting activation.

Proposal from Hon Claudia MO to move a motion under Rule
49B(1A) of the Rules of Procedure at the Council meeting of
18 October 2017 to censure Dr Hon Junius HO

(LC Paper Nos. CB(2)2124/16-17(02) and CB(2)2166/16-17(01))

44. The Chairman informed Members that Ms Claudia MO had given
notice on 29 September 2017 to move the proposed censure motion
("the proposed motion™) at the Council meeting of 18 October 2017.
Subject to the President's approval, the motion would be placed on the
Agenda of the Council. She would invite Ms Claudia MO to speak on
her proposal and Dr Junius HO to respond, following which Members
could express their views on the proposal.

45, At the invitation of the Chairman, Ms Claudia MO said that while
she supported freedom of speech, there was a bottom line that one should
not cross when exercising such freedom. In her view, the "kill without
mercy" ("F%AEEC") remark recently made by Dr Junius HO at a public
rally on 17 September 2017 (“the public rally™), and his repeated use of
the word "kill" when commenting on advocates of "Hong Kong
independence™ after the public rally, had clearly gone beyond the bottom
line of free speech and morals. She strongly criticized Dr HO for
refusing to withdraw such remarks and arguing that the Chinese character
"#%" (meaning "kill" in English) used by him was, in fact, its homonym
for "halt" ("5/]" in Chinese), meaning the need to halt the lawbreaking
expressions of "Hong Kong independence" advocates.




Action

-15-

46. At the invitation of the Chairman, Dr Junius HO said that Ms
Claudia MO's proposal served no meaningful purpose and was merely an
attempt to incriminate him simply by what he had said. He pointed out
that the theme of the public rally was "anti-independence,
anti-cold-bloodedness and anti-bogus academic”, and to call for the
dismissal of Mr Benny TAI Yiu-ting, Associate Professor of the
Department of Law of the University of Hong Kong. The word "kill"
was uttered by a guest speaker at the rally and he chanted "without
mercy" in response, as he was convinced that it was not the intention of
the guest speaker to advocate killing or incite violence. Dr HO further
said that he had urged the media not to distort the meaning of his remarks
and explained that "to kill without mercy" actually meant "we deplore
wrongdoers like our enemies”.

47. Mr_IP Kin-yuen said that while people might have different
political views, every person should respect basic human rights, have
morals and show empathy for other people's situations. It was
unacceptable for a LegCo Member to make such an offensive remark as
"kill without mercy" at a public rally. He considered it necessary for
LegCo to promote respect for different political views and speak out
against incitement to violence and hatred.

48.  Mr WONG Kwok-kin commented that Ms Claudia MO's proposed
motion was senseless and no sensible person would think that the "kill
without mercy" remark concerned was actually meant to advocate killing.
In his view, the moving of the proposed motion was an attempt by
Members of the pro-democracy camp to divert public attention from
recent incidents concerning the display of banners bearing the words
"Hong Kong independence” and the dissemination of "cold-blooded
messages™ in local universities. He considered it a waste of time for
LegCo to deal with the proposed motion, adding that Members belonging
to the Hong Kong Federation of Trade Unions would vote against it.

49. Mr Alvin YEUNG said that the "kill without mercy" remark made
by Dr Junius HO, which carried connotations of violence, showed that
Dr HO had failed to meet the high level of ethical conduct expected of a
LegCo Member. Given that Dr HO might have violated the law but no
enforcement action had been taken by the Police so far, he considered it
necessary for LegCo to follow up the matter in order to uphold justice.




Action

-16 -

50. Mr James TO said that Members belonging to the Democratic
Party ("DP") disapproved of the remarks recently made by Dr Junius HO
about advocates of "Hong Kong independence”. While DP Members
considered that Dr HO should be condemned for making such remarks
which, in their view, were violent and would only intensify divisions in
society, they had reservations about whether the remarks concerned had
met the threshold for invoking the mechanism for the censure of a
Member for misbehaviour under the Basic Law which could lead to
disqualification of a Member from office. Mr TO hoped that Dr HO
would reflect seriously on the matter and recognize that his remarks were
truly unacceptable to the public.

51. Mr LEUNG Che-cheung considered that the "kill without mercy"
remark made by Dr Junius HO was actually an expression used to
condemn those people who advocated "Hong Kong independence”. In
his view, Ms Claudia MO's proposed motion served no meaningful
purpose, and people who advocated "Hong Kong independence" must be
condemned.

52.  Mr YIU Si-wing said that to his understanding, Dr Junius HO's
views given at the public rally was made against the idea of "Hong Kong
independence™ and his "kill without mercy" remark was actually meant to
call a halt to such idea. He therefore did not consider the remark
problematic and would not support Ms Claudia MQO's proposed motion.
He added that although some Members might find Dr HO's views
unacceptable, it was not uncommon for Members from the opposition
camp to use very extreme expressions in conveying their views.

53.  Dr CHENG Chung-tai said that he would support the proposed
motion. He considered that the "kill without mercy" remark made by Dr
Junius HO amounted to criminal intimidation against Mr Benny TAI, and
questioned why the Police had not taken any enforcement action. He
also suspected that Dr HO might have committed fraud, as Dr HO had
stated in his advertising pamphlet for the LegCo election in 2016 that he
was "N AN oL 5] K i ER B g ZE A ET" (in Chinese) / "solicitor in
Singapore, England and Wales" (in English).

54.  Mr Holden CHOW said that he would object to Ms Claudia MO's
proposed motion. He noted that Dr Junius HO had already clarified that
the "kill without mercy"” remark was not meant to advocate killing and
had earlier admitted that it was "a wrong choice of words" and had made
an apology. In his view, the matter should come to an end. He also




Action

-17 -

questioned that the proposed motion was a tactic employed by Members
of the opposition camp to divert public attention from recent incidents
concerning the display of banners bearing the words "Hong Kong
independence™ and the dissemination of “cold-blooded messages" in local
universities.

55.  Dr KWOK Ka-ki said that it was totally unacceptable for anyone to
publicly make a remark of "kill without mercy" which might amount to
criminal intimidation. Given that Dr Junius HO was a LegCo Member
and the former President of the Law Society of Hong Kong, Dr KWOK
considered that Dr HO should be held responsible for what he had said
and should not have argued that people had distorted the meaning of his
remarks.

56. Mrs Regina IP said that while she had earlier criticized Dr Junius
HO for his inappropriate choice of words, she later noted Dr HO's
explanation that his "kill without mercy" remark was "a figure of speech"
and did not mean to advocate killing or incite violence. She did not
consider it justified for Ms Claudia MO to move the proposed motion,
adding that she concurred with Mr James TO that there should be a very
high threshold for invoking the mechanism for the censure of a Member
for misbehaviour under the Basic Law. Therefore, Members of the New
People's Party would oppose the proposed motion.

57. Dr Elizabeth QUAT and Mr LAU Kwok-fan said that they would
not support Ms Claudia MO's proposal. They expressed similar view
that advocates of "Hong Kong independence” must not be tolerated, and
considered that Dr Junius HO's remark was an expression of his
opposition to "Hong Kong independence” without any intention to
advocate killing or incite violence. They pointed out that there was a lot
of business to be dealt with by LegCo, and considered it a waste of time
to debate the proposed motion, which, in their view, was senseless. Dr
QUAT also urged Members not to use extreme expressions when
commenting on others.

58. Dr Priscilla LEUNG said that she would oppose Ms Claudia MO's
proposed motion as a censure motion should only be moved against a
Member who committed misbehaviour. She considered it a waste of
time for the Council to deal with a censure motion against a Member just
because that Member had made some outrageous remarks. She added
that Members from the opposition camp had also made outrageous
remarks at various public events over the years.




Action

-18-

59. Mr CHAN Han-pan and Mr WONG Ting-kwong said that they
opposed Ms Claudia MO’s proposal. Mr CHAN queried that Ms
Claudia MO had adopted double standards in considering Dr Junius HO's
remarks against the advocacy of "Hong Kong independence" intolerable
but those views advocating "Hong Kong independence” not crossing the
bottom line of free speech. Mr WONG considered it meaningless for
Ms Claudia MO to propose moving such a censure motion.

60. Mr CHAN Chi-chuen said that he was one of the three Members
who had jointly signed the notice given by Ms Claudia MO to move the
proposed motion against Dr Junius HO. Expressing his support for Ms
Claudia MQ's proposal, Mr CHAN considered that Dr HO's "kill without
mercy" remark was tantamount to an act of intimidation and inciting
others to kill and Dr HO should be held responsible for what he had said.
Mr CHAN urged Dr HO to apologize publicly if he sincerely regretted
making such a remark.

61. Mr_Charles MOK commented that Members from the
pro-establishment camp should not try to divert public attention to the
issue of "Hong Kong independence”, which was not the subject under
discussion today. He considered that as a LegCo Member, Dr Junius
HO should not casually make inappropriate remarks at a public event.
Mr MOK further said that the purpose of the investigation committee, if
set up, in respect of the proposed motion was to establish the facts and
give views on whether Dr Junius HO's behaviour constituted
misbehaviour and breach of oath under Article 104 of the Basic Law.

62. Mr SHIU Ka-chun did not subscribe to the view that Ms Claudia
MOQ's proposed motion was senseless. He commented that holding the
public rally for the sake of calling for the dismissal of Mr Benny TAI was
"doing something serious in a frivolous manner”, given that the
University of Hong Kong had its own established procedures for dealing
with any staff who had infringed the regulations of the University.

63. Mr Martin LIAO said that at the public rally, Dr Junius HO sought
to appeal to the University of Hong Kong and the public to face squarely
the unhealthy trend brought by Mr Benny TAI who had incited students to
break the law. He noted that Dr HO had admitted that the "kill without
mercy" remark was a wrong choice of words. Although Dr HO's choice
of words was inappropriate and sentimental, no one with a sensible mind
would consider that the "kill without mercy" remark made by Dr HO was
inciting others to use violence.




Action

-19-

64. MsAlice MAK and Mr LUK Chung-hung concurred with the view
of Mr WONG Kwok-kin that the proposed motion was senseless. Ms
MAK said that there were a large number of items of business to be dealt
with by LegCo and Members should discuss issues meaningful to
society instead of the senseless motion proposed by Ms MO. Mr LUK
stressed that the "kill without mercy" remark should not be interpreted out
of context.

65. Dr Fernando CHEUNG said that the "kill without mercy" remark
made by Dr Junius HO at the public rally and his subsequent responses
on the matter had fallen short of the standards of conduct expected of a
LegCo Member, a council member of a university as well as a lawyer.
He considered that the criticisms made by Members from the
pro-establishment camp against Ms Claudia MO's proposed motion were
to confound right and wrong.

66. Mr CHU Hoi-dick considered that Dr Junius HO should apologize
for making his "kill without mercy" remark and his subsequent responses
on the matter. In response to Mr LUK Chung-hung's comment about the
need to interpret the remark in context, Mr CHU cautioned that remarks
made by LegCo Members advocating violence would indeed incite others
to resort to using violence for expressing their views. He cited as an
example that the Hong Kong Free Press, an online media, had recently
received a number of intimidation letters threatening to use violence
against its staff and founder.

67. Mr Paul TSE stressed that he did not agree with Dr Junius HO's "kill
without mercy" remark given at the public rally as well as his subsequent
responses on the matter. In his view, although Dr HO's way of expressing
his views had not met the threshold for invoking the mechanism for the
censure of a Member for misbehaviour under the Basic Law which could
lead to disqualification of a Member from office, he should apologize at a
suitable time for making such inappropriate remark.

68. Mr CHUNG Kwok-pan commented that a Member should always
be careful of what he said in public. However, as any Member might
misspeak on one occasion or another, he considered it neither practical
nor sensible to move motions to censure each and every Member who had
misspoken. Mr CHUNG added that it was inappropriate and unwise for
Dr Junius HO to make the "kill without mercy" remark at a public event,
and he hoped that Dr HO would apologize to the public so as to bring the
controversy to an end.




Action

-20 -

69. Mr KWOK Wai-keung commented that a Chinese phrase could
have different meanings and it should not be interpreted literally. As
regards Ms Claudia MQO’s proposed motion, he pointed out that according
to Article 104 of the Basic Law, LegCo Members must swear to uphold
the Basic Law which stipulated that the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region was an inalienable part of the People's Republic of
China. To uphold their oath, LegCo Members should therefore clearly
oppose "Hong Kong independence™.

70.  Mr LAM Cheuk-ting said that any person with some understanding
of the Chinese language would not be convinced by the explanation given
by Dr Junius HO that the word "kill" in his earlier remarks actually meant
"halt" in Chinese. Mr LAM further said that while it was
understandable that Members of the pro-establishment camp had to speak
in Dr HO's defence, they should have focused on arguing that the remarks
made by Dr HO to incite violence did not warrant the invocation of the
mechanism for the censure of a Member, instead of bringing up the issue
of "Hong Kong independence".

71. Ms Claudia MO criticized some Members of the pro-establishment
camp for using their "anti-independence™ position as an excuse to defend
Dr Junius HO and oppose her proposal to move a motion to censure him.
She stressed that Dr HO had also admitted that the "kill without mercy™
remark was a wrong choice of words.

72.  Dr Junius HO said that it was regrettable that some Members of the
opposition camp who only had a limited grasp of the Chinese language
had twisted his earlier remarks and overplayed the matter. He criticized
these Members for using a prop bearing the word "kill" and his photo at a
public meeting on 20 September 2017, adding that he had already
reported the case to the Police.

73. The Chairman concluded that Members from different political
parties and groupings had expressed their views on Ms Claudia MO's
proposal. She invited Members to note that according to the established
procedure for the censure of a Member under RoP, if the matter stated in
the relevant censure motion was referred to an investigation committee,
Members would debate and vote on the motion at a Council meeting after
the investigation committee had completed its work and reported to the
Council.




Action

-21 -

XIII. Election of the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the House

Committee for the 2017-2018 session

Election of Chairman

74.  The Chairman called for nominations for the chairmanship of HC
for the 2017-2018 session. Ms Starry LEE was nominated by Mr Jeffrey
LAM and the nomination was seconded by Mr CHAN Hak-kan. Ms
Starry LEE accepted the nomination.

75.  As the Chairman was nominated, the Deputy Chairman took over
from the Chairman to preside over the election. He invited other
nominations for the chairmanship. Mr Dennis KWOK was nominated
by Mr Kenneth LEUNG and the nomination was seconded by Mr Alvin
YEUNG. Mr Dennis KWOK accepted the nomination.

76.  Since the Deputy Chairman was also nominated, Mr James TO, the
Member present who had the highest precedence, took over from the
Deputy Chairman to preside over the election. He invited other
nominations for the chairmanship. No further nominations were made.

77.  Dr Fernando CHEUNG, Mr CHU Hoi-dick and Dr Helena WONG
suggested that the two candidates be given time to present their election
platforms and answer questions from Members. Mr CHU Hoi-dick
added that he was particularly concerned about the two candidates' stance
on proposals, if any, to be put forward in the coming session to amend
RoP.

78. Mr _YIU Si-wing said that while the two candidates might be
invited to present their election platforms if they so wished, he did not
consider it necessary to invite the two candidates to answer questions
from Members as it would only prolong the meeting unnecessarily. As
far as he recalled, there was no arrangement for candidates nominated for
the chairmanship of a committee to answer questions from Members.
He sought information from the Clerk on the past practice in this regard.

79. At the invitation of Mr James TO, the Clerk said that while the
procedure for the election of the chairman and deputy chairman of a
committee set out in Appendix IV to HR did not contain any provision
concerning the holding of a forum for presentation of platforms and
answering of questions from Members Dby candidates, there were



Action

-22 -

precedents where such forums were held with the agreement of the
candidates concerned and other members of the committee. For instance,
a forum was held for the election of the Chairman of HC for the
2016-2017 session at the House Committee meeting on 12 October 2016.
The Clerk further said that as the election of the Chairman and Deputy
Chairman of the Finance Committee ("FC") for the 2017-2018 session
was scheduled to be held immediately after this meeting, should Members
agree that a forum be held for the current election, Members might
consider setting a time limit of, say, 15 minutes, for the forum.

80. Mr Martin LIAO said that it was his understanding that RoP did
not provide for the answering of questions from Members by candidates
nominated for the chairmanship of a committee and any decision to make
such an arrangement might amount to a departure from RoP.  Should this
be the case, he considered that it should be for the committee, and not the
presiding Member, to decide whether a forum should be held. Dr
CHIANG Lai-wan expressed similar views.

81. Ms Claudia MO, Mr Kenneth LEUNG, Mr HUI Chi-fung, Mr
CHAN Chi-chuen, Ms Tanya CHAN, Dr KWOK Ka-ki and Dr Helena
WONG considered that the two candidates should be invited to answer
guestions from Members. Ms Claudia MO and Mr Kenneth LEUNG
pointed out that there were precedents where forums were held with the
agreement of the candidates concerned and Members might consider
setting a time limit for the holding of a forum for the current election.
Mr HUI Chi-fung commented that to facilitate Members' consideration of
how they should cast their votes in the current election, it was necessary
for Members to obtain more information about, among others, how the
two candidates would chair the meetings of HC. Mr CHAN Chi-chuen,
Dr KWOK Ka-ki and Dr Helena WONG stressed that Members should
not be deprived of their right to put forward questions to the two
candidates. Dr KWOK Ka-ki also sought advice from LA on whether
the holding of a forum would contravene RoP. @ Ms Tanya CHAN
suggested that in considering how a forum should be held, Members
might make reference to the procedure for the special forum for
presentation of platform and answering of questions from Members by
candidate for the office of the LegCo President set out in Appendix | to
HR.




Action

-23-

82. At the invitation of Mr James TO, LA said that while the holding
of an election forum was not provided in RoP or HR, there was no
provision under RoP or HR that prohibited candidates nominated for
chairmanship or deputy chairmanship of a committee from presenting
their election platforms or answering questions from members, if they so
wished. It had been the practice for the member presiding at the election
to consult the candidates concerned and other members of the committee
on any proposal to hold a forum and there were precedents where such
forums were held with the candidates' and members' agreement.  She did
not consider that the holding of such a forum with the agreement of the
candidates concerned before a vote was taken would contravene RoP or
HR.

83. At the invitation of Mr James TO, Ms Starry LEE and Mr Dennis
KWOK indicated that they were willing to answer questions from
Members. However, as the election of the Chairman and Deputy
Chairman of FC for the 2017-2018 session was scheduled to be held
immediately after this meeting, they hoped that a time limit would be set
for the holding of the forum.

84. Having considered the views expressed by Members and the two
candidates, Mr James TO suggested that a forum lasting for not more than
30 minutes be held. Noting that a total of 11 Members had indicated
intention to put forward questions to the two candidates, Mr TO further
suggested that each candidate be given one minute to present his/her
platform, following which the 11 Members be given 30 seconds each to
put forward their questions and the two candidates be given one minute
each to respond to the question(s) put forward by each of the 11 Members.
Members raised no objection. Members also agreed that in line with the
usual practice, the election forum would be recorded in verbatim.

85. Ms Starry LEE and Mr Dennis KWOK made their respective
presentations. Mr James TO then invited questions from Members.
Ms Starry LEE and Mr Dennis KWOK responded to questions put
forward by Mr HUI Chi-fung, Mr WONG Ting-kwong, Ms Tanya CHAN,
Mr CHAN Hak-kan, Ms Claudia MO, Mr Jeffrey LAM, Dr Helena
WONG, Mr Steven HO, Mr CHAN Chi-chuen, Dr Fernando CHEUNG
and Mr CHU Hoi-dick. (Verbatim transcript of the presentation of
platforms and answering of questions is in the Appendix.)




Action

XIV.

-24 -

86. Mr James TO announced a vote by secret ballot. The result of the
vote was that 37 Members voted for Ms Starry LEE and 21 Members
voted for Mr Dennis KWOK. Mr James TO declared Ms Starry LEE
elected as the Chairman of HC for the 2017-2018 session. Ms Starry
LEE then took the chair.

Election of Deputy Chairman

87. The Chairman called for nominations for the deputy chairmanship
of HC for the 2017-2018 session. Mr Dennis KWOK was nominated by
Mr_IP_Kin-yuen and the nomination was seconded by Mr Kenneth
LEUNG. Mr Dennis KWOK accepted the nomination.

88. As there was no other nomination, the Chairman declared
Mr Dennis KWOK elected as the Deputy Chairman of HC for the
2017-2018 session.

Any other business

Signification of membership of Panels

89. The Chairman said that Members who wished to join any Panel(s)
with effect from the 2017-2018 session in addition to those they had
joined should signify membership through the System for Signification of
Membership and Attendance at Meetings and other Activities by
12:00 noon, Saturday, 7 October 2017.

90. There being no other business, the meeting ended at 5:11 pm.

Council Business Division 2
Leqislative Council Secretariat

12 October 2017



Bif £%
Appendix

AEHREE  HEMUBRELN  FEHFEAMITEXEHZEC
EE - ALK OK- FEMBEEHAMILHESE
AN TR

HEREZE  ZEHEELNTERSR 1 o#E - HIE

FRIHBE I -

AERER AN EE?OK, AR T - 2EHEEK
i IR 1o 3 K5 8T /T A

T
s

FERBE B FERB L -XRERELR  EEERD
B BRREARDEZABLZETLEN - NBZEFERE
VEEHERRIERNAC BT REEFREHANNBEERAEY
G NEBYER ERFILEG G - B8RRI 2 6
HR ZHE 7 - TEREZREIREEERE LBEE - £
RANBZRE GG RBT 0 WEF A B A& R REAE—
o HRHE A ERAERERNEE ERFGIE RS R EEZES
EHRFREEANFAERBREEARTENEEL  HTECETEH
55 IIE S A -

BE—F  ABEEGRBGIEERF EHEZERKT 5D
i o ER IR SRR - FREF — LB EE - IH
FHAMNEAR  GAXHENGZEGHRIRELERE -
KRR MRBTEESE KRG EN LR - RGBT E 5
Wakhs » B (REHA) WEEERD WIEERRT (FF
AAT) » R RAEMERABEZEG - BAR LGRS
K2 EGHTCGEE - #EH -

AHRERRE i1 220 - FREFERE 10 221 -

HBREEE - ZHEF - PHSMUFAFTFERMEEREEERK
HHE - HE#®EE—F > HECEZ I E W8 2 iR
EEFEERN - KEENR Y KR RAHEE &R XK E EE
thay » RS EEES —#EAFK > JARAGEE - BARD



e B B2 HRECR IR RRE-EA]LIEENER
B RFEAEHEME » HEEREBRERIVEFLLESRE
EJ-OIIPEP Y i

B EE—F LUK AT LR R TR E - G JE
AR HEEEER CETR > SLERRGE - KEE
TERHE - DL FEW AR E RS T o JAHE R AE R
ERZZFEHBRE O (FREAA) 580 BERERHELE
T TLERERIB S - n i Al 2R e

AEHREE B L FEEEE 300 -

HEESRE  PUER o HEH-HEZEHEE - HEHMEA
o R R —F o MERFGERNFEREIEERE - DL ER
MR B amryE E AR E - IEA1 7 H 7 HIVF & » AN H
BIBER ARGk Fram - MRS 7R B # S 0K - JR5E
T "BgAa" » NEZSE A" B EMmIT "SRR E - W HAS

NRNEREE > IR BEHINZEEE" EE%8 8 -

7 R RIBIN A E M Ay BUG L5 2 & - P DUAS
i ERTam o B = (WNBSFA) 25 20 ff - g%

FRIRBE FRhEF  REBRFZEEFS (FFEHA) Z
TERE » FARAEEEHERFETRYCEF - E AR EFRIE
THERAZ O A B A B0 e R AR R B e IR A0 R TE
REH B - R ELFREREESE - A E"E®R"
HEAFE"SR"Z®R BAS5UKRENERSHRKE  fTLLEZ—W
REER S - AR B EEE R R - Rk - W
BEBE—F  KRFEAFEEELBEME (REHRA) ZTF
WGRTALE - DARGER G & tH 8 A SORG IEEE R -

SEEFREE  IF o HIREE

p=qii1
il



HEREBEE - CNBFLRET > RYWARRZHEERZEA MHE M
gt —ELEHCHELONEE HEMABEAEAE VSN
e IRHMMERER > TR HEARREHLHEE -
AR B HEEERE K R DU LA R R FR e i
MRRRZMAMEABZAEGE #¥s  EEEHRARAER
TREGHREBERVE  WRRKFZMRHEABEZESH @
el A ERFTEA T L PRI G RE -

AREFRREE AT B AR E UK

ﬁm

¥
S
\IIn
w
(@)
&

EEXBE : 2HEN - NHFEEGEHYLEVEN - EIR
FH PR — S0 M B AR AR R AT AR ALAR RYIE D0 o BB M R R
i - "hIAA B R B 03 S W AZ A0l P e

AREREE T

ﬁm

PoR#EFEE 18 -

Ly

HREEZE B "REF"WHE - HE > "RE"EYH REW
NHZEEGOL/RERA RS AAA" T - fiFR" I AR E - 2
ZHHBEEEEHEREXLERETERS  REHEE L
KREZ RZEH - EFMMEREEREREHEE - Ik H
CEINE - F— - BB EKHR - B EE#R T E N LE 8RS
ANEF o Mmie ST - R E R T e S i AR A E R
e (HEE - mH A RZ2EERE R EEE RO
FE - HEREHERFHEMMERZENMER » 2R A fe 41
RAEIHCREMHEESEFER R EREEFEEMN - 2302
TTBURE kg " gr" s BN R B ERE - e
e e A B Y H H CERTE - EERRER..

AHEREE I BELE - FEHEEE 1 0 -

FERBE NEAHUNRBRZHEBERBEHRERF A "ER
RHNGER  SFHAERSZEEM G 2EENHTT » EEAM
Hikmz  BHAFBEREIN—RUL-EENBTEZEG HH
HEEE NP IE RE SHENREEE R G REH
NEEMYE W BEERMER R EME R T - kL

-3 -




A FEARTRESERER (BREHA) » WNWILHEIEE
EWE o KERAEZMAEEH (REHA) WRER - ALl
MmEEBH (EEMAD) 2EZIEEHRSZERR  E@HZLE
B RAg il - | WERNE > H— BLEFEHRIE
EERARELAGFILY  BEILGIEARERG L ER
Gk o WMHGEAEERITEAERFELELE  BROHAGEE
% (GGREARAN) ERFE® -

AEHREE o Fkc BBGEFEEREM - 30 -

PRMHEZER : WA 25 BEEAFTERIMIFER (F
AAT) - WM AEEERENEM > WERMELRRE  EHE
Y R T RS R s T e AR GE (RSN
B M fEA R 7 BB BRI AR APEBER"AZI
BAD" ERMEZRTA N RCEZE) - #HH LR -

AERERE  FTUBEE 1 0#E -

ﬁm

FEREE  MEBLAROE - REAAR"AZHEA
e HE o KRR ? BE YRR A& E AR EK
AR NG RMBEHEERSEZG RGO EZE R E - —A2
A ERADE—-HERY ENEBARZEERERE - 22
g EEEREERNERLME BV ERET MK
LEREAARER - WBEBSMMA AR IEEE » B A ZARE
e » — (B DLEEEME/NGR X EREKRE - HEHY
wtEH B HARE WA m ARk - KHEEEEYYETEVE
HEFEERFLLZEZCRAAWEP - "N~ E B g E(F - B
HERRZENEEE - NIt REBFHEREMENERE » Al
fE2EERE - WA FHERAEE LIS &M EE - HIK
HH - AEILE > AT ERER......

PR EE FA

ﬁm

B REAmT - FRERE - Lo#E -

HREBES - £ WERFHAZEENEZE LEZERE -
REthE  HEAFEZZETN&@m T RZER (REHAD)
B e B AR (RRERAN) ARE -



\

I}

HEEHR (HEHRA) TE—KR=22MEE ABEEBNE
AT (REHA) —ERREORHE > UEFERAIEZES
Wy Rl SRR e 1Y A B4 & R HM b 5t 5 — HE i
ATl mERRAEEE K (REAHA) » HEHEEXKFE
AR ERAE B G 8 REE M 5T E 77 R B EE
REERBIANWESE  HEAEZETERFAANZETH
FE - W ABRBGEREREHFIRGAZE] > REERFRA
ZEg - ffTE B KRZLE -

AREREE I BEL - M HEEREM 308 -

BRE#EE - 2HEFE > REDEMARERS » HEEEE
g FLEEEGGIE 2 fH— - 58 22K A "IEN - R
B m B ENE » BRI A e ® - Bl (FREFAD) ZHiK#E
B AR REGNE W RRBRBFHUNZEGHEEFELEE
ERNBZEGER  eGREEH (ERFAA) » DLEF
Rhe ' A0 SRR B 5% BT e BN A5 P T e

SEEFRER  FEA 1o -

HEFBES - THHREEWHE - Bl RAEGHRBEAANZEE
MAFEMTFEEL (REFAA) T AHFERR - IR
AL ST o 22 - BAKE - RMAER - P ERAIER
EgEH Lk (REHAA) AR E g EZALL
EfREE s BREFRE? NRZERES T E&T o KA FE IR
B - BTLL - Bog 2 T0E (6 5 2 i -

FE LA S EE Y RS E w P 2 e T 2k
B BER REGIRNAERE - 2 BERAME - HKFHE
EHAERE R A RTRE LA TS I Y RZ 2
NEEERREHEFERAMBER  FTHEBIGEE  —CE2ER
HEBNEREREEN  ER T RhA - EHERAFEEFRTE
R

i R ARE



AHEREE  HELT  HAHR -

HWREEZE - ... BET BB A EEH ...

ARREER

ﬁm
il
g

W c BERHEE - L 4 o

FEHBE LUMHEVERMEETE HTEBAENRFIZE
AR TV TT BCRCRRAE » Hfr — K& - SR
REBBEHAHR AR TEREESER ERrA SRR ?
WHEMA B 5 WELEREEEF T BLZEgE - IR
b g R AR R RALR . WEEAEEE -HE X — &
B A DLEEEE A NFHUEREZEEE ANH - D
Ko - Bt AEREEH (REHRA) .2

S M B EREGRERIE A - BAT R A ERM
i - SREANEHRXEH  BEELSETLEEHERET 75
REETHEZETIRBEDIL  AEETR Y EZ5EH

REEF - AT AR DRFCLEGA H 0 7
FIF LA+ 3 {9 7% 8 % 6 3802 ™0 10 ™ 00 08 3 2 6 94 60 46 17 B
R HEHE ..

AERBE T BEL-BLFHEE 30W -

ELZPRHER 2R ek M EREE" - WEZ" T’
JIE" - MAEREIRH DQ 1 6 (L[] 5 - 6 {7 o it 58" KT )"
ERESERN ERREER GREFEAA]) B (REHA) -
e P D A il M5 5

HEGEH A2 G EE MR REHBHE 3 H 280 f£5
R AT AR E) (REAAD) UE

ARREER

ﬁ#ﬁ
il
i
dm
H
bt
el
i
Bl
\In
H
3
i



FERER EMAERENERERZ2ERAN LXK MZAE
R Y 255 B o HAE (E B R B Y pl & - B A A3 IR
B MBI R EE X FHCEL IR R F CR&HRE - 3K
My Bz — » BFNER (REHA) -

HMEHBR(EERA) - N BIBNE 6 & B BARET -
HIFRRE  E—EEB R E R R 37(a) iy H C A& e H
High  HEETHEEERERBANEZEGZE TGN
H (GEEA) Bl - Arbl > HM R E Al ek - 3o
gEE (HFEHRA) EF HEECKH 7 — 0288 21
b M gE (REHRAN) FI— [ m KR FE LK
Ry (GREAAT) BRI E » FERG AU "R AE Ol AR -

AEREE  HRERE Lo -

BHWHE : T REBSROTRIRERE  BBAR
EHREN (RFAA) - REAMENR (RFRA) 2 AL
PP PSR T ELT RS F P SRR
B L REBERBRRES (RERA) - KFLAS
S R TS AL AE B BB AE B -  R L

18 e H A -

FH WA RRAEM A ZEEREHEZ T HEEA T -
HEREBEZENEERAENREY  ENEHNAXREETERSA
Fer ek TDLEEERMINES - EHEEHEEH - H
BEHREHEERZN AR  EEE L RFEAEFEHRERNL
w2 HAREREZIRNETEMEEHIE TR ZAITERE
BRI E - BT DL - BB AT R - AR OR S = A I [H AU R
s E gy -

REEREA  MENTE S0P

MEREBS: ZHEF  RELFTTEEE  HARHRIE it E
RE®RASCRMAE - IR EaE o TR A\ A & R
HMRER -

HAEEHH > HERRSEE A e —LHE "
A" s R EERMTHNESRIAE2HE - RMg
mf e ? N BILEgRHERES » 28 -

-7 -



AHERRE  HRmE 10 -

BLEHE: FHRENEELGTHL . NREGALH 4 -
HIFRS - RRSRE RN RS EME - REELs
ERRERALNE FESSEZANES  KERBE . K
FHSR - SR R R EREEIEY  ERE
117 %k e 8 7 2 B T

=gy

f

PG — B - 5 R AR 09 IR [ BO0R - AN IR
eEXE AN BREHENR RKXERFEEFEELEE NN
B mG RRE - ATDL . W Ef > AREE A SR —A - #HF
PRARZ o RO A i - B2 G 5 I R% A 8 (7 R ER AT 6 A
TR R HEFNFETE A RERE - REES
KEBRTMBELZETERT -

SREFRER  FEA 1o -

FRRBE  PHMEBRREN L - EWEIEFERR - EEH
ERERGROUNEREHRZRE NELZEgGRLEER
TV EERREER  NRMASTESHEEE  HEEAEW -
ER S WBEREERISEIREHME L » SEIREIKH RS
KER  ERERHCEGRBGIEEE  -He  E8E
FHEAHDERME? ZREBXAERELE » WHTFELF

Hb i B At 2 HH 58 S Y EOR -

FTDL » 3R THERra G B SOEF - SRS LA S H AR - 5 HF X
HAyna &g FrleRZmEEE s mkM e S5
R B - "EHRTE R MEE OGS - EREREELEA
HEEHES > WEFELREEEA BN - 35 5D & 8 i -

AHERRE T HiELF EEEEE 0P -

RBEHE  EH REAN ZREHRAE T RBER - 0
MRAER TR LHARGOEETAAT  EHEE 10 H
18 0/ SIS H - REH - ARSI  mReEE
P S2 BB 15 A7 9+ 3 — T 7 (R 55 ) B3 R 2

-8 -



HERRE  FRE 10 -

FEREE  PHIHNER HERZRE  FFFEHRNE
ZEGER  WEBNREANEERK  FEEMNF > KKRE
BERIRFRAEHAEE T - bl R BGERE - REFI &
® EEUEER  CTREERERE - KRBT RIFI DR
EXNREFFRREZDNOARE » HFEREREAEEFEGRKR -
KRB ERE®RN - BN EAFESUREMERK - HEREZHER
RERIC - A RBRZEEBEERBRKER - HZE - LB IR
WER » ZABAE M ERFG (RFEA) BT » #
REGHHE BN EEFHEGRE T EKNK -

ER S WA FEEE BRI E FRE......

ﬁi&

ARERBER FEL M ER - FEE Lo -

HWREZE - BRI R - REERFEE S & E £ ol &l
EERBREMTMEREHENER - WameERg NN — X5
e IH 0 EP o BB IRIT BB R — L PE - HE AR ERL
Z R AR o M £ 2 IR B F & &6y & | ] BLE
TH - BRI EE A R R - AR A I AT R
X ERa - S EE - RS AR B AT DL 3 A 4 F H
G AR — R RS EENBZAEY R XK IE
R EEER -

SREFREE IF o EEEMARERE 0K -

MERREE  ZHEE B NBEZEFNLERAEFEEY
AERBGFR A KRR - HE KBLEIAREYEEXEE L
TR ERE SN R A ARRXR - EER -EFER
EFN—RXABZEGERLALAR SR EEREZR
BB E A RSB EE  RELEEFRS > MRRREHER
FEEMREH - EREENERE.....

AHERRE T HEE BRER LoE -



HREES - WBREREBWEZERERNEENESE -
MARXEEG EREB A A EKHRE - HERKR-REZRIERY
aie B 50 U A Al SR - BT S R AR BCE R Y S0E R R TR
B TARBIANER - ZOARBEEHBBAIAER - KEE
NBEEEG N HGERL > FHOEERAMEERERE - G/
ERFmRETNE  HREMFPHRERLMERG R ELE -
AN O SISt AR FTE G R Bk 2UR B0 R] R OBR
ENMRFRFENVEEMENER > RgHRHKGE T — @

Gk AT EARS -

AEHEE OK, ZEHHE - 198 -

FEBIREER - 23 Steven W EHIEERBE - HEEMBAER
ZEFIIRAELMEEE - B LA REBETRERABTEZET
EFEOEL NEEREANBZET ERABRE A FAREBN
NE  BEENFZEGHWMINE R RESNFRGE G
HETEABZEGERE  FEREERE M WAHEW
e G HEMEG M - LIENGERZEGERIHE -

B2 HEMESE 2L ET - WIFHE S AR HNRY
e B0 AR R G 5 BTGB i B B W] R A Y 3 R
—HER . WMAEE.. KA gRDEREREZE - He  BEE
BEEED - 2EEFEKE HNERNBZEGRHEEEEE
[ fis B H AR Al E 2 — S E N~ HERECWER B X
WAtk B HE R ...

PR EE FA

ﬁm
il

T BELRT o BERREE 30K -

REZEZE : EEW

Hif—@EEEWNE > EEH R NEN
REJ] » HEERLE AT~ EEL -

HE HOHERHEEYE  CHEFXEHEE  BREHCHE
wE—F o NtyRE > w2 EEHS > BOoHHE BHEGR

B R NEH RN RN B BHEER ? RE MR
5§ 5 49 th 77 L -

ARREER

ﬁ#ﬁ

8 :E FEHEE  1o# -



FERBE  WERREMABZEGNEHE - REEBGIEAD -
a0 R R R 3R A = B A0 3 5E Bk E IR i e B XK E
0 BE EARE M E PO F] A K g AR o BRI
FratiyAaEEARS - ROEeREH - HE RIS
ARRXENS > B-XREBRFAARMNGEKEE - EH&RS
WIMIpA 26 » ERAIM A ARG RELENEEREZRED
RE o & 1E N4 Ml Dennis Bl E B E & @ - o i
THIEE TEME  EEG A LIGIEEF - SHREREREL
WEIRRE - WAHEADIEEEZBNBELZEY  #HEFEIE
JIHE I St S -

7R EE A

ﬁi&

8 FEEa Lo -

WREEE - FHREWBAARNGHE - HE - KBLAEHEC
—RAR - MR ENE A RENE SR O —IHEE IR
L — R NEIERZEE - HEaE & & il A2 5 & AT
LHE - MRk HEE L EG EEKAE - RREZED
SR o WL A0 R AR FAT B LR A BA £R 0 B B — (E R A Y
g [ BUE A A R T B TR R R E R E - Fr L
WG RERC - HEBUE A Al R g | 5 R RN E 2 ERE
WES o EhWGH B —LFEFERHARER - B2 GHYE
E AT BB LA B R A By - BAAIR A Em B H R LEE
REF=ZE BELHER KBEESHETE > LA R —E
[H]

AEERRRE i REBIHEEER - 308 -

REBHEE - TN NBEZATEREIERE LRGN E
maft ERMNIEGERAERTEE  NELZEGEE
HALBREER MESHEBETERERVER » WHXR
BEGAE B ARG 5% WET e AR RMIHE NS
ZEGEREG R LR RAEME - S e R R
FEE

SEREFRRRR I FEA L0 -



FERBE - HMHEAE —F  BREFANFEZEGAFE
REHBERBLER - TR R EEFGIEY - JIRFER B
CHEER (REAA) » EFREGRHNE - 2ERRIATES
frAmE HEXERAFAZESEZNOEZEHEANRA®
S THIE - HE RE#EWH > FENITEG  FHEN
BREGI I EggR  HEMBZEG IR #IEHEEY -
W—REFGHEALFY > HEREILAIREFIREAEME -
ARG L RREHE MR - BT DL WA BN TFERNBEAH
A G BUERILE M BRERFFROLSENE - LEEL
HrEZAFAEIREENER - RERE - IR R AT ELT -

rELE TR REY

FEWRE - B Fernando WRIE » HEREBANBEZEETIE
RERET—HREZNAC RERRERERERRFHILES

EERE S EREgR LT ELENHEE -

W BEARE  EARBIRE  SRZRSHE - w2
EE  IMERFFRONE B RIEE A MEHMNE - 3K
RS MRLEENG > KHEHP—-FEREZOVEL - HE2ENA
Kk B LEG R RM > RRMfEERF g EREHENEL
EEEHE FRESRAMERNE - IR MEEHRS
EUNRAOR g G —H¥EfHEER DIREEMEBELLZ
T RME S BEHEEE - 50 MM IR 2 A R B R
i ERrgER EEEENE - KMER T RBMMRBL -

ABEHE T RERAYMHRE - 300 -

KELHEEE - W EE - 5 AR B/ ZBIRETEZETTHE
Rt (REHAD) > MRATLLERM - HERT M A -
HEMZEHEE MESCAIIREEROKEE - MEFE
HEZR DLNGZEG EEIEREE (BREHA) &Kt
1 E EAE 2 e 2

LT RS TREPE B

-12 -



FBIRBE  AYMEE - WAEGRAEFR ...

AERERE WO SREZHF RERE L EIE -

FEIN

ﬁm
il
g
&

AHEREE  HREEE 1 0#E -

WRBEF - WHMEHEA K KRR FH— > HEHEEE"
ffi"——quote and unquote——#J [ & - IR - FFHEEE —
B HEER (REHRA) » 2R ENEBIGEREGE ? 245
HAEJREM R FTEE "R A A R e 2 T B S 2 RA R - T AR

ERE=H -

F o mEER GEERAN) - HERFHAIZE G EE
MIN B REEY  EARFHEEE - Hit > S8R > LH
eEHIK > AEERSENEEERBERALZET  MEREH
MEZEGEFECA - AR TATAERRKR (CGREHAA) 1R E
EA -l WAEERFXEEEHRESALZET - HREMA
ZEEG RV IMEEBRN AR kG EAZHEEE BT
%?‘ o

SREFREE IF o RBREFEE  LoHE -

FERBE  AHEE RMHENBZEGEN  Himih ¥ (FF
AAT) BRBIIL S 2 EE - A Al RE K F 389 32 55 11 B R A & 1Y
Y AGEBAREHNANRBELFRARNILE » RAHE
R ARKNFNH KMV - RERAUZEgE - #—H
EETNZET > WMAEREERX (REHRA) BT HFEE
R I & B E ORI -

A FMEHEAE - B2 (GREAAD) » THEEEHE T —
HAKFSHEN LD - MR A EER > AJEEFEERE —
PRIGIRE E - JLE Bk (REFEHAT) - 8 & Womd K B 38 " HI G
BR#ESE" M —CEgKE - JElrEs & E - Ui

- 13 -



Al
e
S
Il
(u
g
=4
Ry
i
I
il
X
il
[
il
WE
W
F
i
IS
glll
(i
i

ARERER T R T AL ER o RS W
30 sr#sERG o WEMBMAE AR A T AGETT R E » HAER LIE
NEHB-UHENERE —REZER —FEEHHOEIE -

- 14 -



